/{/owa.r%am,a ﬂéoﬂ?x}m/ Jbore Councd
Council Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, 24 September 2024,10:00 AM — 3:00pm

Kowanyama Chambers and Cairns Boardroom

1.  Welcome

2. Apologies [ Conflict of Interest

3. a. Minutes from the Previous Meeting (August OM 2024)
b. Action Items

4. Reports

4.1. Councillor Portfolio Updates
4.2. Chief Executive Officer

4.2.). Information Report: Monthly Update (Verbal update)
4.2.2.Information Report: Ranger Program Strategic Plan

4.3. Executive Manager Corporate and Financial Services
4.3.1. Information Report: Monthly Update

a. Governance
b. Finance Report
C. HrReport

4.3.2.Agenda Reports
a. Disestablishment of Committee

4.4. Executive Manager Roads, Infrastructure and Essential Services

4.4.. Information Report: Monthly Update (LATE REPORT)
4.4.2.Agenda Reports

a. Subdivision Variation (LATE REPORT)

4.5. Executive Manager Community Services

4.5.. Information Report: Monthly Update
4.5.2.Agenda Reports — NIL

5. Other Business

6. Closed Business

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council | Council Meeting Agenda

KOWANYAMA
Place.of many waters

24 September 2024



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Councill
August Council Meeting
Minutes

27 August 2024, 10:05AM - 11:31AM

Kowanyama Chambers and Cairns Boardroom

KOWANYAMA
Place 06 many walers,



Council Meeting Minutes

Table of Contents

1.

2.

5.

6.

Opening/Welcome

27 August 2024

Declarable Conflicts of Interest

Previous Minutes /| Action Items

Reports

4.1.  Mayor, Deputy, and Councillor Updates — VERBAL UPDATE

4.2. Chief Executive Officer

4.21. Information Report

422. Agenda Reports — Neighbourhood Centre

4.3. Executive Manager Corporate Services and Finance

4.3.. Information Report

4.4. Executive Manager Roads, Infrastructure and Essential Services

4.4.. Information Report

45. Executive Manager Community Services and Cultural Heritage

45.1. Information Report

Other Business

Closed Business

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

Page1of 6



Council Meeting Minutes

Present

Councillors

Kowanyama Boardroom

Remote Office (Karratha, WA)

Executive
Cairns Boardroom

Kowanyama Boardroom

1.  Opening/Welcome

27 August 2024

Cr. Teddy Bernard
Cr. Richard Stafford
Cr. Coralie Lawrence

Cr. Territa Dick

Kevin Bell, Chief Executive Officer

Joe Cristaldi, Executive Manager Corporate Services and Finance (EMCSF)
Leah Chambers, Acting Executive Manager Community Services and
Chris McLaughlin, Governance Officer

Rob Jaggar, Acting Executive Manager Roads, Infrastructure and Essential
Services (A/EMRIES)

Meeting commenced at 10:05AM.

Mayor Territa Dick welcomed the Councillors and Executive Team to the August Council Meeting and paid
respects to Traditional Owners and Elders (past and present).

Apologies

RESOLUTION: Cr Charmaine Lawrence

That Council accepts the apologies of Cr. Charmaine Lawrence

Moved: Cr. Teddy Bernard
Seconded: Cr. Territa Dick
CARRIED
2. Declarable Conflicts of Interest
Councillors advise that there is no Conflict of Interest to be declared.
CARRIED

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

Page 2 of 6



Council Meeting Minutes 27 August 2024

3.

a.

b.

4..

4.2.

4.2)1.

4.2.2.

Previous Minutes [ Action Items

Previous Minutes
RESOLUTION: Minutes (July Ordinary Council Meeting)
Minutes from the June Ordinary Council Meeting 30 July 2024 to be adopted as true and accurate.

Moved: Cr. Teddy Bernard
Seconded: Cr. Coralie Lawrence

CARRIED

Action Items

Action Items register was noted and tabled.

Reports

Mayor, Deputy, and Councillor Updates — VERBAL UPDATE

Mayor noted the following events for August 2024:
e  First Nations Summit (Policing)

e Developing Northern Australia Forum (Karratha — WA).

Chief Executive Officer
Information Report

Kevin Bell (CEO) presented the CEO information report to Council. Information report was noted and tabled by
Council.

Action Item: Council supports the review of the Community Safety Plan in 2024/25 and gives direction to the
Chief Executive Officer to progress.

Agenda Reports — Neighbourhood Centre

RESOLUTION: Neighbourhood Centre

That Council resolve to provide its “in principle” support to the State of Queensland (represented by Department
of Treaty, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships, Communities and the Arts) establishing a new
Neighbourhood Centre in the Kowanyama Shire and delegate authority to the Chief Executive Officer to
progress due diligence enquires and negotiations to identify a suitable site, and commence planning, design,
and community engagement and report back to Council at regular intervals on progress.

Moved: Cr. Territa Dick
Seconded:  Cr. Teddy Bernard
CARRIED

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 3of 6



Council Meeting Minutes 27 August 2024

Cr. Territa Dick left meeting at 10:4lam and returned at 10:47am

4.3. Executive Manager Corporate Services and Finance
4.3.1. Information Report

a. Governance Information Report
Chris McLaughlin (A/Governance Manager) presented the Governance report to Council. Information report

was noted and tabled by Council.

Action Item: CEO to obtain further and better particulars re income and expenditure of the liquidator for the
Kowanyama Cattle Company Pty Ltd.

b. Finance Information Report — VERBAL REPORT
Verbal report provided by Joe Cristaldi (EMCSF).

c.  Human Resources Information Report

Joe Cristaldi (EMCSF) presented the HR report to Council. Information report was noted and tabled by Council.

4.4. Executive Manager Roads, Infrastructure and Essential Services
4.4]. Information Report

Rob Jaggar, (A/EMRIES) presented EMRIES Information report to Council. Information report was noted and
tabled.

4.5. Executive Manager Community Services and Cultural Heritage
4.5.1. Information Report

Leah Chambers, A/EMCS&CH presented EMCS&CH information report to Council. Information report was noted
and tabled by Council.

Cr. Territa Dick left meeting at 11:14am and returned at 11:31am

Action item: EMCSCH to investigate medical requirements (obtaining medications) for community members
who cannot access the community clinic.

5. Other Business

Nil

Meeting Closed: 11:31AM

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 4 of 6



Council Meeting Minutes 27 August 2024

6. Closed Business

That pursuant to section 254J(3) (a) and (e) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (Qld), the Council resolves
to close the meeting to the public due to negotiations relating to an employment matter and legal advice
obtained by Council.

6.1. Employment Matter

Moved: Cr. Teddy Bernard
Seconded: Cr. Coralie Lawrence
CARRIED
Out of Closed Business
Council resolved to move out of Closed Business
Moved: Cr. Teddy Bernard
Seconded: Cr. Coralie Lawrence
CARRIED

Action Item: AMG to schedule a Special Meeting for Friday 30 August 2024 (9am) via MS Teams to consider
agenda item 6.1 Employment Matter, in the presence of Cr Charmaine Lawrence.

Meeting closed at 11:42PM

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 5 of 6



KASC ACTION ITEMS REGISTER

Meeting Type Day / Origin Month Year Subject Action Item Lead Officer Current Progress Current Target Date for Completion
Status
Council 19 January 2021 (First Aid EMHR - require more defibrillators available across all work EMCFS Mar-2024: Met with LMS - provided overview of current services and |In progress
Meeting places capabilities can offer. Potential for new HR recruitment to have WHS

capabilities. Governance have been undertaking quotes for WHS
Training, Evacuation Training, updated evac plans and diagrams.
CEO discuss with current Paramedic to provide First Aid training to
nominated staff. Governance seek quote/proposal from CRANAPIus.
May 2024: Looking to discuss training options with QAS and
identifying First Officer requirements.

June 2024: QAS officer will be departing community and Council are
currently exploring replacement options.

September 2024: EMCSCH working through CPR and First Aid. Follow-

up with HR regarding defib's and mounting as appropriate.

Council 22 February 2023 |Planning Scheme AMG to ensure new Planning Scheme consider new cemetery EMCFS Jan 2024: No further updates In progress
Meeting area Feb 2024: No further updates

Mar 2024: No further updates

May 2024: No further updates

June 2024: No further updates
September 2024 No further updates

August 2024: RJ met with EM Community Services, ES Manager
including Department of Housing to agree on a strategy and
Council alternative processes to remove the car bodies.

30 May 2024 |Vehicles EMRIES to draft letter to residents re: vehicles on roads or in yards. | EMRIES In progress
Meeting Sep 2024: EMRIES to do a report to CEO with recommendation on
process moving forward. Report will incoroprate Risks and WH&S

concerns as well as financial implications.

Council CEO to contact RISE Ventures for an update on training / works August 2024: Update to be provided in August OM

) 27 June 2024 |RISE ’ CEO . . . 3 In progress
Meeting that have been completed for the Kowanyama Community. Sep 2024: Once RISE CEO is appointed. Meeting will be scheduled.
Council CEO to organise meeting with RISE and Councillors re: August 2024: Update to be provided in August OM

. 30 July 2024 |RISE CEO . . . 3 In progress
Meeting employment Sep 2024: Once RISE CEO is appointed. Meeting will be scheduled.
Council RISE MOU with Council to be provided to Councillors for clarity on August 2024: Update to be provided in August OM

. 30 July 2024 |RISE . CEO . . . 3 In progress
Meeting commitments, roles and responsibilities Sep 2024: Once RISE CEO is appointed. Meeting will be scheduled.
Council EMCSF to provide monthly updates on employment to .

. 30 July 2024 |HR EMCF August 2024: included in HR monthly udpate report In progress
Meeting Councillors
Council . Cr Dick requested that there be pre-Council meeting before each

. 30 July 2024 |Councillor Meeting . ’ ) Mayor In progress
Meeting monthly meeting to prepare Councillors for agenda items

Council supports the review of the Community Safety Plan in
Council
27 Aug 2024 |Community Safety Plan 2024/25 and gives direction to the Chief Executive Officer to CEO Sep 2024: EMCSCH to start work on Safety Plan Review In progress
Meeting
progress.




CEO to obtain further and better particulars re income and

Council Sep 2024: AMG to follow up with PWC to gain further breakdown of
27 Aug 2024 |Cattle Company expenditure of the liquidator for the Kowanyama Cattle CEO In progress
Meeting Financials.
Company Pty Ltd.
EMCSCH to investigate medical requirements (obtaining
Council
27 Aug 2024 |Community Clinic medications) for community members who cannot access the  |[EMCSCH In progress
Meeting

community clinic.




Council Meeting Report

4.2.2 —Information Report

Title: Information Report — Rangers Program
Author: Chief Executive Officer

Meeting Date: 24 September 2024

Ssummary:

Council operates the Land & Sea Ranger program through a funding contract provided by NIAA (National Indigenous
Australians Agency). Council's contract with NIAA extends to 30 June 2028. After this, it is highly likely that the program
will be funded again and could continue into the indefinite future.

One of our contractual requirements to NIAA is the production of a Strategic Plan to cover the next 4 years.
Attached for Council review and consideration are:

« Briefing Note: KASC Land & Sea Rangers Strategic Plan
¢ Indigenous Land and Sea Rangers Program: Strategic Plan 2024-2028.

This is an information report only and does not require or seek a resolution by Council for this Ordinary Meeting.

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Pagelof 3



Council Meeting Report

Attachment: Briefing Note - KASC Land & Sea Rangers Strategic Plan

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 2 of 3



LAND & SEA

KOKOMENJENA KOKOBERRA KUNJEN

Kowanyama Land & Sea Rangers
Strategic Plan: 2024-2028

Background

Council operate the Land & Sea Ranger program through a funding contract provided by
NIAA (National Indigenous Australians Agency).

Council’s contract with NIAA extends to 30 June 2028. After this, itis highly likely that the
program will be funded again and could continue into the indefinite future.

One of our contractual requirements to NIAA is the production of a Strategic Plan to cover
the next 4 years.

A draft is being prepared and will be provided to Councillors at the September OM.

Strategic scenarios

Although the Ranger Program is currently a formal and legal function of Council, there are
different ideas about what the Ragner Program should look like in the future.

There are three broad alternatives, each of which will be discussed following:

Business as Usual: Council would continue to operate the program as a direct function of
Council

Step away: Council could choose to either terminate its current contract with NIAA or
choose not to renew: either way, the goal would be for Council to no longer be the
“operator” of the Ranger Program.

Spin-off enterprise: In this scenario, Council would set up a special-purpose entity to
operate the Ranger Program at “arm’s length” from Council.

Each of these scenarios offer different benefits and problems for Council and for the
community. The Strategic Plan will need to reflect Council’s preferences for how to
proceed with the Ranger Program into the future.



Business as Usual

The current program is funded by NIAA at approx $900,000/yr. The program provides full-
time employment for up to 8 Rangers plus a number of casual contractors. The program is
not a cost Council because the budget is capped to match the funding available.

Benefits:

Stability. There is no pressing urgency to change the current program. This allows us to
focus on addressing workforce issues, providing more training and professional
development assistance, and making progress on the Ranger works program.

Efficiency. Management of the program is all within KASC’s normal operational processes.
This means decisions can be made more effectively.

Certainty. By keeping the program within Council, we can be sure that the program
continues to function and deliver benefits to the community and Kowanyama country.

Drawbacks:

Cumbersome. Because the program operates as a Council function, it means that all the
local government bureaucracy is unavoidable. Issues like hiring and firing can be so
difficult that it appears nothing is happening.

Risk-averse. Local Government has a strong political bias against taking risks. This puts a
damper on many activities that Rangers could undertake to benefit the community.

Detached from Culture. Because the cultural body is the PBC, it means that Council’s
Rangers are not seen as legitimate cultural representatives. Since caring for country is a
deeply cultural activity, Council’s Rangers are not seen as “the community’s Rangers”

Step away

The current program belongs to NIAA: they award the contract. If Council wished to step
away from the Ranger Program, it would be necessary to unilaterally terminate the
contract. There would not be a financial penalty for this, however, it could be seen as a
negative outcome which could affect future NIAA contracts that Council seeks.

Benefits:

Simplification. Stepping away from the Ranger program could be a relief on Council’s
systems as Ranger activities do consume time and attention.



Risk reduction. Ranger activities are risky Ranger behaviours can be a political risk.
Council could avoid these risks by terminating the Ranger contract with NIAA.

Making room. If Council terminated the contract, it would mean that other organisations
(eg, the PBC) could make an application to NIAA to contract for a new Ranger program

Drawbacks:

Insecurity. By letting the contract out of Council’s control we lose the ability to make sure
there is a proper Ranger Program in Kowanyama. There is no guarantee that another
organisation will either (a) be successful at bidding with NIAA for a contract; or (b) will
manage to keep the program running year after year.

Opacity. A non-governmental organisation does not have the same public transparency
rules as local government. Another organisation could easily run “closed books”, giving
rise to a sense of mistrust in the community.

Reputational risk. Stepping away from the program could be seen as a lack of ambition for
both the current and future Councillors. This could have a negative impact on the whole
community as funders could be reluctant to re-engage with Kowanyama.

Spin-off Enterprise

Council could organise a new business venture for the special purpose function of running
the Ranger Program. If it were established as a joint venture or member-owned
organisation, it could achieve a good balance between institutional stability (via Council)
and community alignment (via its independence).

Benefits:

Greater independence. The program would be able to set goals that extend to community
benefit than what Council is able to offer, and with lower direct risk to Council.

Extended range. The program could operate on a fee-for-service basis across the region,
not just within the Shire.

More commercial. The program could operate on a standard commercial basis with
regard to purchasing, asset management, and workforce development.

Drawbacks:

Less control. Council would have to deal with a more complex arrangement since the
Ranger business would have its own management.



Less credit. Council would not be able to claim all the credit for Ranger program success.

Operational complexity. The program would still interface with Council’s assets and
infrastructure. Managing this would require more complex arrangements.

Recommendation

The draft Strategic Plan sets out broad support for the Spin-off Enterprise option. On
balance, this option offers more solid opportunities for growth and development of the
program while still retaining an essential level of engagement and guidance by Council.

Governance approach

This diagram shows how the governance of the Spin-off Enterprise might be arranged.

Grants & Fee Rangers Buildings & Admin &
for Service & Staff Assets Insurances

Representative Board
Independent Chair
ACNC listed, Indigenous owned, Not-for-Profit

Kowanyama Land and Sea Rangers, Inc

Special Purpose
Entity

Kowanyama

_ Shire Council
community Service provision

a nd count ry Local Government Act

This arrangement paves the way for other entities (eg, the PBC) to join the new entity and
collaborate in its strategic management. It also provides a mechanism for individuals to
serve in Board positions and carry high-level responsibility for the success of the Ranger
program.

Both of these opportunities serve to transfer more of the sense of ownership and
community/cultural authority back into the Ranger Program, more in the way it existed as
the KALNRMO Lands Office.






Council Meeting Report

Attachment: Indigenous Land and Sea Rangers Program: Strategic Plan 2024-2028

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 3 of 3



Indigenous Land and Sea Ranger Program:
Strategic Plan 2024—2028

=

E

KOWANYAMA

ABCRIGINAL SHRE COUNCIL

Place of many walers

| [Indigenous Land & Sea Ranger Program] | Strategic plan [2024--2028] 1



[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



"We want to see our country healthy. Waterholes still with waterlily and
lagoons healthy. We want to see our country looking beautiful ... like it was
when we first had it.

We don't want it to be run down and buggered up altogether. We want to
make sure that young children say, this is what the old people tell us about."

Colin Lawrence - Uw Ogkangand Elder, 1993

Dedications and acknowledgements

With profound acknowledgement of the elders of our country. With appreciation of the opportunities we have. With the
commitment to a healthy and abundant future for all our country and people.

Dedicated to the memory and legacy of Viv Sinnamon.

Cover Image: Rangers learning new skills (with aerial incendiary drones) while exercising old skills (getting equipment un-bogged!)

3
[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Contents

Indigenous Land and Sea Ranger Program: Strategic Plan 2024—2028 ..........uuiiiei i ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e eeaar e e e e e e e e e aasaeeeas 1
Dedications and aCKNOWIEAZEMENTS..........uiiii e e e e e e r e e e e e e e ettt e e eeeeeeesaraaseeaeeeaaastaaseeaeeaaansaaseeaeeaaannses 3

RV LT L T T =L =10 1= o PP 6
(O L0 = Y= LS USSP 7

(O TV T oY g Ta i1 o] [=T PP UP RO PPPP 7

(O U] gy o oY PP PPPPPPPPPIRE 8
History of the Rangers and the Lands OffiCe ... e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e ettbe e e e e e e e esntaaeeeeeeeenannes 8
Lo TolU oY o g T IR A= L =Y 4Tl = o TSRS 9
L0 Lol U | = [ PP 9
Pathway tOWard INAEPENUENCE ....eeiiei i e e e et e e e e e et a e e e e e eeesabaaseeaeeeeaababaesaaeeeaaasbaesaaeeeeannrreneas 10
INAIZENOUS RANZEIS PrOZIam OUELCOMES. ....uuiiiiieiiiiiiiiiee e e e eecitite e e e e e e e eetta e e e e e e seesaaaeeeeaeeeaaaatraseeaeeeasstaaaseaaeeasnssssaaeseseaansnrranaaeeaan 10
L0 V7= g = T o PP 12
[OI8] g o] o] A1 [ (=T FJ PP P PP PPPPPPPPOPPPPPPPPIRE 13
Lo Y g N =T T R X 0 1V oY Y 0 =T o =Y SO SP 13
(00T o) =) OO T PP P OPPRR PRI 14
SUMMANY: ENVIFONMENTAL STIATEEY .. uviiiiieii it e e e e ettt e e e e e e e ettt eeeeeeeeesabsaseeaeeeaasbaaseaeeeeaastaaaeeeeeeaannses 14
Lo g N =T T OV 1 U SO SP 15
(0T = P 16
SUMMANY: CURUTAL STEATEEY . .uveeiiiieieiiiiiiie ettt e e e et e e e e e e e ettt eeeeeeeeesaataeseeeeeeasasssaseeaeeeasasbaassaaeeesastaaneeaeeeaannses 16
Priority Area 3: Workforce DEVEIOPMENT......ooi et e e e et e e e e e e et b e e e e e e e e et ataaaeeeeeeeentasaeeeeeseennsnraanaaaeaan 17
(0T = P 18
Summary: Workforce DevelOpmMENTt STrAtEEY .....ciicuieeiiiiieeciiee ettt eete et e e ettt e e e te e e e sateeeestaeeeessaeessseaeeansaeeeesneaesnnseeenn 18
Priority Area 4: ECONOMIC DEVEIOPIMENT ...c..uviiiiiiieectiee ettt et e et e e e sttt e e e et eeeessaaeeesbeaeeassaeeeanssaeeasseeesansseeeanssneesnsseeean 19
(00T o) =) PP PP PP PPPRP PRI 20
Summary: ECONOMIC DEVEIOPMENT STFATEEY ...uuviiieeeiiieiiiiiee ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e eesabbeeeeaeeeessbaaeeeeeeesantaaseeaeeenannses 20
Partnerships and StAKENOIAEIS .........iiiiiiie et e e e ettt e e e et e e e eaaaeeeetbaeeaastaeeeanseaeeassseaeaastseeeanssneesssenean 21

1Y T Ta oY u T = dr=Ta Yo I XY= [N Fo o WSO 25
Monitoring and Evaluation ANNUAI SCOIE Cards.........ueeiiieiiiiiiiiee et e e eeertr e e e e e e e rbb e e e e e e e eesataeaeeeeeeesntasseeaeeseenasnrrenaaaeaan 25

231 oY[ToT={= T o] o | VAP UP RSP PPUT 26

F Y] 01T e [ USSR PUUPPPRRRRt 26

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Vision Statement

The foundations for this Strategic Plan rest on an overarching and uniting vision which is held by the people of Kowanyama.
The words used to express this vision were put down by Viv Sinnamon in 2007 and remain as potent today as when they
were first published:

"In establishing and maintaining Kowanyama's stake in the future management of its lands and waters, an
overarching goal, a strategic intent, for Kowanyama Aboriginal Lands and Waters is required in order to provide
for the economic, social and cultural well-being of today's generation, but without limiting the options for future
generations"

"The strategic intent will guide our decisions about the future management of Kowanyama Aboriginal lands and
waters. It will further assist in the strengthening of what the people of Kowanyama view as their continuing Native
Title Rights and responsibilities".

"Underpinning the strategic intent is the assumption that as the original inhabitants of Kowanyama Country, the
Kowanyama People, have individual and collective rights and responsibilities that are expressed through their
ongoing use, management and governance of country. The Kowanyama People will determine the instruments of
governance of their country".

"The strategic intent for the management of Kowanyama Aboriginal lands and waters will be to achieve
Aboriginal management of the natural and cultural resources of Kowanyama land and sea country by the people
of Kowanyama, given that the continuing cultural and biological diversity of country are integrally linked and
cannot be viewed as separable”.

Viv Sinnamon with elder Simpson Yam at the Oriners Homestead.

! Sinnamon , V.C. (2007) Working on Country Proposal : Integration of Kowanyama Programs into Regional Plans. A collation
of notes and documents to inform discussion on Kowanyama Aboriginal Land and Natural Resources Management Office's
application to the Commonwealth Government.

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Our goals

In pursuing this over-arching vision, we will always be mindful of our goals:

1. The Kowanyama Rangers will work to make our country and culture healthier for the benefit of all our people.
The Ranger program will establish itself as a self-sufficient operation that is able to make decisions in the best
interest of community and country.

3. The Ranger program will continuously renew and refresh itself so that younger and older generations are always
learning from and supporting one another.

Our principles

In 1994, at the Mukarnt bush camp, 13 Principles were agreed by the elders gathered to establish the Land Office. These
principles are applicable to the ongoing operation of the Kowanyama Land and Sea Ranger program:

Recognition of traditional interests Community participation Commitment to negotiation

Self -governance Unity of purpose Provision of expertise

Management for future generations Common ground Social and economic values

Evolving processes Mutual recognition and respect Maintenance of culture
Connectedness

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Our story

T‘thnpuram
GULF Y " 3 ey —
CI; }0 5%0 20 0 40 A -
CARPENTARIA tf"‘ Homestead <7

Homestead
_— -
DRUMDUFF | ~——
(et DUNBAR r<SiDunbal \ N
AUSTRALIA pusessiant & P53 Homestead % --------
- — - -

Kowanyama lies in the Mitchell River mega-fan, a delta region that covers over 300,000ha on the western Cape York
Peninsula.

After a history of violent dispossession by cattle speculators in the late 1800’s and early 1900’s, the township of Kowanyama
was eventually settled and remains the home for the Kokoberra, Kunjen, and Kokomnjena peoples.

The Kowanyama Community Council was established in 1985 and transitioned from a community council to an Aboriginal
Shire Council under the Queensland Local Government Act in 2009.

History of the Rangers and the Lands Office

The Indigenous Ranger Program grew out of a long process of land rights activism, cultural re-connection, and land
stewardship that commenced in the early 1970s. Eary forms of the Ranger program were convened by the Kowanyama
Aboriginal Land and NRM Office (KALNRMO) under the guidance of a Council of Elders. Since its inception in 1990, the
KALNRMO has operated on a charter to support and facilitate Aboriginal management of the natural and cultural resources
of Kowanyama land and sea country by the people of Kowanyama. The first Strategic Plan was produced in 1994 with
revisions in 1999 and 2003.

The people leading KALNRMO were instrumental in a successful land rights claim (1987), closing and control of the South
Mitchell commercial inshore fisheries (1987), the acquisition of the Oriners-Sefton Pastoral lease (1990), production of the
Kowanyama Project (2003), and securing recognition of the Kowanyama Collection as a cultural asset of National Significance
(2009). In an effort to improve the local self-sufficiency of the community KALNRMO was instrumental in establishing the
Kowanyama Cattle Company in 1994. It was during the late 1980’s and early 2000’s that the KALNRMO earned regional and
international respect as one of the first and most successful Ranger Programs in Australia.

| [Indigenous Land & Sea Ranger Program] | Strategic plan [2024--2028] 8



Despite its outstanding achievements, the KALNRMO did not develop an independent institutional framework for operations.
The Kowanyama Community Council acted as the auspice for KALNRMO until 2009 when the Council was re-established
under the QLD Local Government Act as Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council (KASC). KASC survived a financial crisis in 2012-
13, slowly recovering and reaching full health again in 2020.

Funding for the Ranger program originally came from a number of small grants that KALNRMO applied for. By 1994 the CDEP
program was providing wages sufficient to support (xx) Rangers full time. These were employees of KASC since KALNRMO did
not run its own books.

The CDEP program was awarded to the prescribed body corporate, Abm Elgoring Ambung (the PBC, or AEA), from 20xx until
20xx.

NIAA contract

The Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council was awarded the contract for delivery of the Indigenous Ranger Program through
the Working on Country (Cth) arrangements in (20xx), transitioning to the NIAA program. The current NIAA contract expires
in 2028.

Through community consultation and direction, KALNRMO has developed a community development agenda for the
Kowanyama region, including:

Land Management including weeds and feral animal control
Tourism and Visitor Management

Kowanyama Ranger Service

Cultural Resource Documentation

A five-year strategic plan (2016-2020) was produced as a guiding document for the people of Kowanyama to achieve
ownership and management of their lands, waters and culture in their own way. Due to difficulties with program
management, the 2016-2020 Plan was never formally adopted or implemented. However, the quality of engagement and
vision captured in that Plan provides an essential foundation for this current Strategic Plan.

This document is intended to guide the Indigenous Ranger Program (IRP) at a strategic level. The key objective is to provide a
firm yet adaptive framework for co-management of the IRP between the two parties: Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council
and Abm Elgoring Ambung.

Focus of the Strategic Plan

While acknowledging the vast collections of biophysical and cultural knowledge assembled through prior operation of the
Lands Office, this document reflects a commitment to the ongoing sustainability of the Kowanyama Land & Sea Ranger
program. Specifically, this relates to the financial viability and the Indigenous relevance of the program, a situation that
neatly captures the imperatives of two different worldviews. Without financial viability, the program will be unable to
operate as a legal entity within the prevailing economic framework. Likewise, without relevance to autonomous Indigenous
aspirations, the program will be culturally bankrupt and unable to operate. Thus, the program must be designed to
continually affirm its economic and cultural viability.

Focus areas

The Strategy works to contribute to the three core agendas of land and sea management efforts:

1. Resource management: continue to build on the existing efforts of the Land and Sea Ranger program, through the
protection, management and appropriate use of natural and cultural resources of Kowanyama country for
Kowanyama people now and for the future.

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Economic development: identify and guide appropriate, sustainable, high-value economic opportunities that will
generate future sustainability of the program and its operations.

Institutional development: improve the engagement and participation of the Indigenous Rangers to advocate for
greater participation in cultural issues that affect the Kowanyama people through building of capacity, knowledge,
skills and capability.

Pathway toward independence

The long-term future of the IRP is to establish an arrangement that delivers the most value for Kowanyama people both in
terms of job security but also (and especially) in terms of cultural vitality.

Rangers learn to depend on each other in Coxswain's training (Photo: Larry Matthews)

Indigenous Rangers Program outcomes

This Strategic Plan will be consistent with the intended outcomes of the Commonwealth’s Indigenous Rangers
Program:

Indigenous Australians contribute to the maintenance and improvement of Australia’s unique cultural and natural
environment.

Indigenous youth, men, women and LGBTIQA+ people work in locally and culturally relevant jobs in land and water
management.

Indigenous men and women access training and development opportunities that improve their leadership and
career pathways in land and water management and support greater engagement with emerging technologies.

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



e The local community, including Traditional Owners, Elders, and young people is engaged in activities that strengthen
connection to Country.

e lLanguage and Indigenous knowledge is actively transferred in accordance with cultural protocols.

e Indigenous organisations are engaged in partnerships that support the planning and delivery of their caring for
Country strategy.

e Indigenous organisations build capability that supports the generation of economic opportunities.

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Governance

The current governance model is specified by Council’s Operational Plan, 2024. Rangers report to 2x Senior Rangers who
jointly share responsibility for line management and daily operations. The Senior Rangers report to the Ranger Coordinator,
who reports to the Executive Director, Community Services & Cultural Heritage. In terms of operations, the Ranger Program
is a function of Council, with all HR, WHS, and Procurement being handled through Council’s standing policies, in compliance
with requirements of the Local Government Act (Qld, 2009)

This Strategic Plan introduces an aspirational governance arrangement that sees the Ranger Program evolving to a stand-
alone or special-purpose entity sitting outside of Council’s immediate corporate structure as a special-purpose corporation.

The governance arrangements for this new entity will be guided by developments over the 2024-2026 period, with a set of
recommendations to be put to Council in 2026 for the final stages of the current NIAA contract.

Grants & Fee Rangers Buildings & Admin &
for Service & Staff Assets Insurances

Kowanyama Land & Sea Rangers, Inc

Representative Board
Independent Chair
ACNC listed, Indigenous owned, Not-for-Profit

Special Purpose
Entity

COERVEINE Shire Council

Community Service provision
Local Government Act

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Our priority areas

Priority Area 1: Environmental

Ly T{ : a 5 m Y .,,

F
o

| [Indigenous Land & Sea Ranger Program] | Strategic plan [2024--2028]




Context

Everything starts with the relationship to country. How is this enabled, supported, and celebrated? How can we keep the values of a country-based culture alive and thriving while
also maintaining regard for economic demands and dependencies? And how can Kowanyama people make their country more healthy in the face of global climate instability? In
the same way that everything starts with country, this plan begins with the relationships among people. The necessary core of the Indigenous Ranger Program is a vibrant and
engaged community leadership who carry the custodianship values of our country, and who provide themselves as living examples to guide and enrich the younger generations.

Summary: Environmental strategy

Target

Kowanyama country
is actively managed
by Indigenous
Rangers to reduce
threatening
processes and
amplify beneficial
processes.

Per KASC Corporate

...to ensure ongoing
protection of, and
connection to, our
natural environment
and community.

Plan2024-2029 (1-2):

Threats

(1) Lack of
leadership and
lack of
participation by
young people in
the ongoing
management of
Kowanyama
country.

(2) Lack of secure
ongoing funding
to run the
program.

(3) Being
overwhelmed by
the scale of
environmental
dysfunction.

Objectives

Strategies

Key Evaluation Question

Establish a flourishing Connect the Rangers to the Mens and Womens 4yr | How does the community express its
and engaged groups, as well as the HACC, to increase the sense of ownership and engagement
community leadership richness of connection between the Ranger with the Ranger program, and is this
that expresses a sense program and the community. engagement distributed amongst men
of partnership with the and women, youth and elders?
P P Develop deeper ties with the school to advance a | 4yr y

Ranger Program. L . .

positive perception of the Rangers and their work

with young Kowanyama TOs.

Involve the community with a wide range of 3yr

media and communications materials that

essentially “tell the community story” back to

them, with the Rangers in the frame.
Achieve sufficient Invest in training and capability that positions the | 4yr | What is the evidence for sufficient
institutional stability to Ranger Program as a preferred provider of capability and institutional commitment
ensure the program environmental solutions. to the Ranger Program to ensure its
continues over the continuing operation at appropriate

Ensure that Council is aligned and committed to 2yr § op pprop
long term. . levels of effort over the long term?

an economically-sound strategy for the Ranger

Program.
Develop internal Establish appropriate survey and monitoring 2yr | How can landscape health and trend be
capability and processes to ensure the scale and scope of established and evaluated, and is this
partnerships with environmental issues are accurately understood. process sufficient to retain appropriate
other institutions to levels of support from external partners?

. Maintain a high level of collegial engagement dyr PP P

provide the level of . . )

with regional agencies and relevant
effort needed to h/ t part
stabilise and improve research/management partners.
environmental Implement activities that will contribute to 4yr

conditions.

improved biodiversity and landscape-scale
resilience.

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]




Priority Area 2: Cultural

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Context

Culture is a living, dynamic process that is always reflecting the needs and the aspirations of people as they negotiate their world together. Many Kowanyama people want to
remember how their old people danced and sang, how they hunted and gathered, and what stories they told in their own languages. Many Kowanyama people are also looking for
new ways to live, taking advantage of digital technologies and globalised lifestyles that create a new form of culture in Kowanyama. The land itself has also changed: there is no
traditional knowledge for how to deal with pigs, Parkinsonia, or the Palmer River Dam because these are problems that weren’t part of that older culture. We see the Land & Sea
Rangers as guardians of our traditional knowledge and culture. We also see them as innovators, helping us to appreciate how our culture is adapting to a changing world.

Summary: Cultural strategy

Target

The Land & Sea
Rangers are a key
contributor to the
culture of
Kowanyama, which
is appreciated and
celebrated by the
community,
combining both
traditional customs
and new practices
that help people
experience rich,
healthy lives.

Threats

(1) Cultural
leadership fails to
emerge and
facilitate the
conscious effort to
express a
“Kowanyama
Culture”

(2) Cultural
leadership emerges,
but is divisive and
exclusive, driving a
habit of fractious
claims for authority
and leading to a low
sense of cultural
cohesion.

Objectives

Priority

Strategies

Duration

Key Evaluation Question

Ensure that the Land | 2 Rangers are active in promoting 4yr In what ways are the Rangers seen by
& Sea Rangers Kowanyama culture both within the the community as strong and
express a positive community and when visiting other constructive contributors to
and inclusive communities. Kowanyama culture?
relationship with
P 2 Rangers are represented at significant 4yr
Kowanyama culture . .
cultural forums, discussions, and
ceremony.
1 Rangers demonstrate respect for the 4yr
whole community and balance the
benefits to ensure fair distribution
across the community.
Per KASC Corporate 2 Involvement with story-telling, oral 4yr Are the Rangers respected as
Plan 2024-2029 (1- histories, and place-based practices. competent and ethical collectors and
8): Capture and custodians of Kowanyama stories?
): Cap 1 Maintain database of cultural sites and 4yr y
develop the . . .
correlate with biophysical surveys to
knowledge and ensure ongoing protection
stories of Y gong p on.
community for our 2 Assist with media production and Ayr

future generations

promotion within the community.

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]




Priority Area 3: Workforce Development

L

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Context

The Land & Sea Ranger Program can function as a highly effective training and skills-acquisition process. It can also be an introduction to the discipline and expectations of a work
environment where obligations and performance are assessed through an institutional lens. The Land & Sea program will always sit at the intersection of professionalism and

community life.

Summary: Workforce Development strategy

Target

The Land & Sea
Ranger program
attracts and retains
the highest quality
of participants and
delivers the most
positive workplace
experience in
Kowanyama.

Threats

(1) Lack of clarity and
commitment in
Council Executive
allows dysfunctional
workspace to persist,
meaning the good
Rangers are
disadvantaged and
eventually leave the
program.

(2) Competition or
lack of support from
other community
institutions, which
may contribute to
low-level hostilities
and lack of respect
toward Rangers.

Objectives

Internal dynamics

Strategies

KASC Corporate Plan 2024-2029 (3-1): “enable personal
growth, and promote achievements. Develop leadership
and succession plans.”

KASC Corporate Plan 2024-2029 (3-2): Provide “...a safe
and healthy workplace, where self improvement and
innovation are fostered and rewarded.”

Key Evaluation Question

Ensure there are
realistic economic
pathways for
Rangers to secure
long-term viability
for the program as
well as develop
opportunities for
external or

independent work.

KASC Corporate Plan 2024-2029 (3-3): “Identify
employment and economic opportunities and advocate
for investment that provides ongoing employment.”

KASC Corporate Plan 2024-2029 (3-4): “...support local
entrepreneurs to pursue business opportunities and
understand business development requirements.”

KASC Corporate Plan 2024-2029 (4-3): “Retain and
introduce employment or contracting within the
community.”

Young people

KASC Corporate Plan 2024-2029 (3-5): “Explore
opportunities to develop training programs for school
leavers.”

KASC Corporate Plan 2024-2029 (4-3): “...attract special
education teachers and specialised curriculum.”

KASC Corporate Plan 2024-2029 (4-3): “...provide for
culturally specific Education.”

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Priority Area 4: Economic Development

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]




Context

Summary: Economic Development strategy

Target Threats

Difficult economic
conditions may
limit the
opportunities to
develop external
opportunities

Objectives

Ensure Council is
positioning itself
properly in relation
to the Land & Sea
Ranger Program and
the aspirations of
TOs of the
Kowanyama
community

Priority

Strategies

(2-7): Review key services delivered by
Council to determine the most efficient
model of delivery to provide maximum
community benefit.

Duration Key Evaluation Question

(1-2): Support the continued growth of
the (Land & Sea Ranger Program) to
ensure ongoing protection of, and
connection to, our natural environment
and community

Council priorities

(3-8): Promote a future leaders program.

(4-3): “...deliver business assistance
programs for existing and emerging
businesses.”

(3-6): Develop the “Pathways for young
people - youth employment strategy”
including a review of barriers to youth
employment.

Reaching out

(3-7): “Work with industry experts to
facilitate pre-feasibility studies on key
sectors and industry development
opportunities within region.”

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]

20



Parinerships and stakeholders

-

Photo: Mark Weaver https://www.facebook.com/woventracks/photos/1031228057072640

Country and community

Country

Country is the key stakeholder: beyond and before all others there is the country itself. We are custodians for the lands and
seas that we call our country. Everything begins and ends with that country.

Our elders

Our Elders are the authority for our culture and the Lore (law) that guides our behaviour.

The community

We serve our community, and they rely on us to serve as faithful representatives of the Land & Sea Ranger program.

Our neighbours

The current work area of the Land & Sea Rangers includes the Shire of Kowanyama and the pastoral leases at Oriners &
Sefton. Taken together, our neighbours comprise a diverse assembly of land uses and tenure types, summarised here:

Property Landuse Tenure

Rutland Plains Pastoral / Conservation Leasehold
Dunbar Pastoral Leasehold

Errk Oykangand (Alice River) NP Conservation Freehold (CYPAL)
Koolatah Pastoral Leasehold

Olkola NP Conservation Freehold (CYPAL)
Crosbie Conservation Freehold

Crosbie Pastoral / Conservation Leasehold
Harkness Nature Reserve Conservation Leasehold

| [Indigenous Land & Sea Ranger Program] | Strategic plan [2024--2028] 2



Balurga Pastoral Leasehold

Pormpuraauw Conservation Freehold

Maintaining good relations with these land managers is essential for the Land & Sea Rangers as weeds, fire, and ferals cannot
be managed on property lines alone. Coordination and collaboration is the only practical strategy.

Institutions and agencies

Abm Elgoring Ambung (PBC)

The PBC is our representative Native Title organisation. The PBC holds the title to our freehold Aboriginal Lands on behalf of
the Traditional Owners. The PBC is an important institution that helps to represent the views of all Traditional Owners, as
expressed through open community discussion and transparent decision-making. The PBC is essential for the proper function
of the Land & Sea program since ranger activities can take place on country where the PBC is the land owner and proper
consent is required.

Fisheries

(QBFP, Fisheries Queensland).
Biosecurity Queensland
Queensland Parks
Education Queensliand
Museums Queensland

SES and Queensland Fire

(State Emergency Services)

Regional NRM & Landcare

Cape York NRM and Gulf Savannah NRM are our two regional NRM bodies. These groups maintain the Regional NRM plans
that are relevant to our country, They assist in locating relevant grant opportunities, organising networking and
collaboration, and advocating for appropriate landuse.

The Mitchell River Watershed Management Group is our local landcare organisation. The group was first established by
Kowanyama elders in the late 1980s as a way to ensure the whole catchment was seen as a living system that needed to be
managed for long-term sustainability.

NAILSMA

(North Australia Land and Sea Management Alliance)

ICIN

(Indigenous Carbon Industry Network)

Local Government

LGAQ

(Local Government Association Queensland) Our Land & Sea Program is contracted to Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council.
As an operational function of KASC, the Program must be conducted within and according to the QLD Local Government Act

22
[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



(2009). The LGAQ is the representative body for local governments and is able to advocate on behalf of KASC and other
Shires on matters relevant to the operation of the Land & Sea Rangers.

TCICA

(Torres Cape Indigenous Council Alliance) Our Council is a proud and contributing member to the TCICA. As with the LGAQ,
and similar to the TOCs (Regional Organisation of Councils), the TCICA is able to represent our interests to the Queensland
Government. As an alliance, the TCICA carries considerable authority to advance our regional aspirations, many of which are
relevant to the work of the Land & Sea Rangers.

Shires

The Shires of Cook, Carpentaria, Mareeba, and Pormpuraaw are our adjacent neighbours.

Clients and programs

TopWatch

(Commonwealth, DAFF)

GhostNets

(Commonwealth, DAFF)

WCTTAA

(Western Cape Turtle Threat Abatement Alliance) Hosted by Cape York NRM, the WCTTAA program has been a key partner in
supporting the Land & Sea Rangers to

23
[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]



Partnerships: selected summary

Partners/Stakeholders Stakeholder impact on Impacts on Stakeholder Type of engagement Methods of engagement When/ how often? Key evaluation

project questions for
engagement

| [Indigenous Land & Sea Ranger Program] | Strategic plan [2024--2028] 24



Monitoring and Evaluation

Operational context

The Land & Sea Ranger Program benefits from a 6-monthly

Monitoring and Evaluation Annual Score Cards

Target: [Target title]

Trend from
previous report

Self-assessment of performance against target

Who is responsible for
during this reporting period

collecting
. . /analysing/reporting
Key Evaluation Method/Unit of data & what is the

. Indicator
Questions Measurement .
frequency of reporting

Discussion of results and any recommendations for
changes to the strategies in the Strategic Plan or
(especially for ‘getting worse’ trends) additional actions
for the next Annual Project Plan.

Summary of Getting better

data collected

Unchanged

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]
25



Bibliography

[Include a bibliography referencing documents in your plan. Delete this page if not
needed.]

Appendix

[Include any appendices necessary to present details and information to support the
plan.]

[INDIGENOUS LAND & SEA RANGER PROGRAM] | STRATEGIC PLAN [2024--2028]

26



Council Meeting Report

4.3.1.a - Governance Update

Title: Governance Monthly Update

Author: Acting Manager Governance

Meeting Date: 24 September 2024

Key Items

Annual Report 2023-2024

Governance Team are currently working with Executive Managers to finalise initial draft for external graphic designer.
Report remains on track and will be finalised by statutory due date. Annual Report will be submitted for adoption in
the November Ordinary Meeting.

Carbon Farming

ACCU sales to occur in Q1 2024/25 per Council resolution at the June 2024 Ordinary Meeting. Contract has now been
signed with purchaser. Concurrent with the new ACCU sales contract, Council is considering transition to a new
Carbon methodology. LRF contract has also been signed with a sunset period of 3 years for Council to undertake due
diligence to transfer to a new carbon methodology should it wish to do so. A report will follow.

Planning Scheme

No further updates — status remains as:
It is understood that $12M has been made available in the Qld State budget for Planning Scheme renewals in discrete
Indigenous communities, to be facilitated by TCICA. Awaiting communications from TCICA.

Lot 98/81 Subdivision
Stage 1A

Practical Completion has been signed off in September 2024 by the Superintendent.
Stage 1B

Expected Practical Completion in October 2024. On track.

Local Laws

Governance team currently working on Animal Management and Noise amendments to current Local Laws. Report
will be submitted to October Ordinary Meeting.

Council 5-Year Corporate Plan

Corporate Plan review/workshop session has been rescheduled to Monday 30 September 2024.

Staff Housing Upgrades

Council has outsourced QBuild to undertake Condition Assessments on all Council Staff Houses. QBuild are currently
in Community conducting assessments until 27 September 2024. Purpose of the assessments will be to identify any
non-compliances for Council to rectify. QBuild will provide Condition Assessment Reports for Council to draft a

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page1of 2



Council Meeting Report

building and maintenance plan, which includes Request for Quote (RFQ) process for scope of works. Anticipated start
date for commencing works is early 2025.

Councillor Registers of Interest

Do you need to update your Register of Interest to include changes in your circumstances? Please request a form
from your Governance Team.

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 2 of 2



Council Meeting Report

4.3.1.b - Finance Update

Title:

Author:

Meeting Date:

Key Items

Finance Information Report

Acting Executive Manager Corporate and Financial Services
24 September 2024

Financial Report August 2024

The monthly Finance report for the month of August 2024 has been prepared as at Attachment 1

e Key points from the August 2024 YTD report are as follows:

o

o

o

o

o

net operating result (before depreciation) is a $2,674K profit, which is $1,846K worse than budget
actual net operating income is $6,926K which is $2,559K worse than budget

actual operating expenditure is $4,251K which is $712K better than budget

Net profit/(loss) (after depreciation) is $918K profit, which is $1,923K worse than budget

Untied Cash Funds balance is $14,304K

Recommendation:

That Council note the:

¢ Monthly Financial Report —August 2024

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page1of 2



Council Meeting Report

Attachment 1:

¢ Monthly Financial Report - August 2024

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 2 of 2



[P P—

Financial Report
August 2024

Page 1



Financial Report August 2024

CONTENTS Page
Financial Summary 3
Operating Statement 4
Operating by Program 6
Capital by project 9
Statement of Financial Position & Cash 11

(all results are in $)

Page 2

L e o

T DT M= SR
]fﬂr_-,r.rlg LY | PRy



Year to Date August 2024 et i o
Finance Summary

The YTD August 2024 financials show an actual operating profit of $917,613 compared to a
budgeted profit of $2,841,106.

Favourable variances arose for General Purpose Grant revenue $177,782, Interest Received
$83,834, Insurance Recoveries $25,000, Accommodation Revenue $72,355 & Wages $258,161
due to vacancies

The balance of the operating variance is mainly due to the timing of revenue and expenditure
against budget phasing including Carbon Credit sales ($2,200,000), Heavy Plant recoveries
($200,000) and QBuild programs ($523,155).

Further details can be found in the Operating by Program section of this report.

Capital program works are progressing and all projects are within budget allocations.

Page 3



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council
Profit & Loss
Period ending - 31/08/2024

Year to Date

Year to Date | Variance to Full Year
Year to Date Current Current Current
Actual Budget Budget Budget
$ $ $ $

Income

Council Rates, Levies & Charge 612,322 610,000 2,322 610,000
Commissions & Fees Revenue 25,229 31,468 (6,240) 188,819
Aviation Landing Fees 62,595 50,000 12,595 300,000
Other Fees & Charges 0 832 (832) 5,000
Accommodation Revenue 253,371 181,016 72,355 1,086,100
Rental Income 169,613 161,666 7,947 970,000
Interest Received 166,166 82,332 83,834 494,000
Sale of Goods Revenue 259,531 199,998 59,533 1,174,913
Services Revenue 310,177 3,035,576 (2,725,399) 8,413,496
Aviation Fuel Revenue 70,596 83,332 (12,736) 500,000
Insurance Recoveries 25,000 0 25,000 0
Fuel Tax Credits 0 2,000 (2,000) 12,000
Other Income 44,371 40,416 3,955 242,500
Training Recoveries 15,000 0 15,000 100,000
State Government Grants - Operating 281,046 228,388 52,658 4,938,955
Commonwealth Government Grants - Operating 4,528,725 4,407,636 121,089 7,382,009
Internal Cost Recoveries - Sale of goods 30,367 97,498 (67,131) 585,000
Internal Cost Recoveries - Services 71,748 272,496 (200,748) 1,635,000
Total Income 6,925,857 9,484,654| (2,558,797) 28,637,792
Less Expenses

Cost Of Goods Sold 218,571 273,228 54,657 1,639,385
Stock Adjustments & Stocktake variances 2,283 0 (2,283) 10,000
Wages - Permanent Staff 1,425,767 1,681,641 255,874 9,791,088
Superannuation 149,720 200,533 50,813 1,167,760
Recruitment & Relocation 14,013 23,332 9,319 140,000
Workers Compensation 32,622 38,242 5,620 229,045
Staff Education & Training 29,409 36,598 7,189 236,646
Training and Workcare Costs - recoverable 0 1,248 1,248 7,500
Employee Assistance Program 0 416 416 2,500
Audit Fees 15,400 17,394 1,994 104,375
Admin Expenses 0 3,000 3,000 13,000
Advertising Costs 573 6,330 5,757 35,500
Memberships & Subscriptions 15,167 17,346 2,179 104,137
Postage & Stationery 2,617 5,746 3,129 34,583
Staff Amenities 2,091 7,174 5,083 43,162
Hcp Purchased Goods 4,685 4,166 (519) 25,000
MV Expenses - Fuel 40,710 24,998 (15,712) 150,100
MV Expenses - Registration 543 2,188 1,645 13,145
R&M - MV Expenses 34,889 57,852 22,963 322,180
Plant Hire 72 88 16 535
Consultants 10,816 54,414 43,598 476,529
Contractors 900,527 891,058 (9,469) 5,682,150
Legal Expenses 4,547 21,250 16,703 115,000
Accountancy Fees 22,300 15,000 (7,300) 90,000

Page 4




Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council
Profit & Loss
Period ending - 31/08/2024

Year to Date

Year to Date | Variance to Full Year
Year to Date Current Current Current
Actual Budget Budget Budget
$ $ $ $
Computer, IT & Network 68,910 94,168 25,258 665,055
Telephone, Fax & Printers 42,523 45,854 3,331 275,231
Cleaning 7,619 8,920 1,301 53,667
Freight 30,453 44,948 14,495 189,828
Security 3,052 2,482 (570) 14,900
Catering 34,724 27,424 (7,300) 161,619
Donations 92,000 102,500 10,500 115,000
Safety Equipment 3,132 1,392 (1,740) 8,391
Protective Clothing/Uniforms 4,534 5,824 1,290 35,040
Consumables/Materials 72,751 134,319 61,568 657,709
Mobilisation & Demobilisation 0 1,152 1,152 6,919
Electricity 75,472 73,402 (2,070) 440,521
Small Tools, Equipment And Furniture 35,884 36,410 526 218,572
Portable & Attractive Assets (0) 32,972 32,972 147,864
R&M - Roads & Infrastructure 0 3,136 3,136 18,818
R&M - Buildings 2,150 127,766 125,616 731,625
R&M - Plant & Equipment 84,430 82,246 (2,184) 466,048
R&M - Other 0 11,958 11,958 71,826
Travel Exps - Accommodation 27,098 27,480 382 108,955
Travel Exps - Airfares 64,561 58,470 (6,091) 238,458
Travel Exps - Car Hire/ Taxis/ Km'S 1,649 6,369 4,720 35,423
Travel Exps - Meals & Incident 16,733 26,736 10,003 154,583
Rent 22,526 22,934 408 137,623
ATM & Eftpos Fees, Bank Charges & Interest 5,795 7,666 1,871 46,000
Insurance 549,835 551,132 1,297 676,800
Bad Debts Written Off 650 0 (650) 0
Fees & Charges 216 352 136 2,143
Licences 4,749 1,142 (3,607) 6,874
Rates & Taxes 680 6,666 5,986 40,000
Internal Cost Charges - Sale of Goods & Services 71,975 89,028 17,053 397,050
Internal Cost Allocation - Wages 0 (54,166) (54,166) (325,000)
Net Operating Expense 4,251,422 4,963,924 712,502 26,230,859
Net Operating Profit / (Loss) 2,674,436 4,520,730 (1,846,295) 2,406,932
Depreciation 1,756,822 1,679,624 (77,198) 10,077,789
Net Profit / (Loss) 917,613 2,841,106 (1,923,493) (7,670,857)

Page 5




Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

Year to Date August 2024

Net Operating Results by Program

S
e =5

Office of the CEO
Variance to
Actual YTD Current Budget Current Full Year
Program YTD Budget Current Budget
Kowanyama Office Deficit ($94,735) ($123,660) $28,925 ($700,506)
Councillor Costs Deficit ($106,547) ($98,690) ($7,857) ($574,640)
General Council Deficit ($603,553) ($674,334) $70,781 ($4,390,797)
Arthur Beetson - Legends Deficit ($172,726) ($195,000) $22,274 ($195,000)
KASC Events Surplus $0 ($15,000) $15,000 ($60,000)
Carbon Farming Deficit ($122,575) $1,980,298|  ($2,102,873) $2,847,537
Carbon Contra Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0
Cleaning Services Deficit ($20,308) ($35,749) $15,441 ($208,424)
Accommodation Facilities Surplus $210,447 $92,492 $117,955 $366,916
TOTAL Office of the CEO Deficit ($909,997) $930,357|  ($1,840,354) ($2,914,915)
Corporate & Financial Services
Actual YTD Current Budget Vaél:rr:::tto Full Year
Program YTD Budget Current Budget
Cairns Office & Finance Deficit ($176,669) ($179,030) $2,361 ($1,056,593)
Human Resources Deficit ($64,890) ($127,249) $62,359 ($899,299)
Governance Deficit ($89,387) ($100,806) $11,419 ($538,848)
Information, Communications & Technology Deficit ($101,907) ($182,972) $81,065 ($1,092,505)
Purchase Store Deficit ($54,381) ($85,850) $31,469 ($433,369)
Payroll Use Only Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0
Bakery Deficit ($64) $0 ($64) $0
Blue Cafe Deficit ($2,269) $0 ($2,269) $0
Kowanyama Cattle Co Deficit ($16,993) $19,500 ($36,493) $112,913
FAGS - General Purpose Surplus $3,811,737 $3,647,000 $164,737 $3,647,000
Indigenous Councils Funding Program (lcfp) Surplus $0 $0 $0 $3,568,572
TOTAL Corporate & Financial Services Surplus $3,305,178 $2,990,593 $314,585 $3,307,870

Page 6



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

Year to Date August 2024

Net Operating Results by Program

Community Services & Cultural Heritage

Actual YTD Current Budget Va(;l:lrr:::tto Full Year

Program YTD Budget Current Budget
Untied Funding Programs

Centrelink Surplus $4,200 ($59) $4,259 $2,581
Community Bus Deficit ($58) ($7,384) $7,326 ($43,196)
Mp Sport & Rec Facility Deficit ($29,522) ($28,487) ($1,035) ($167,955)
National Disability Insurance Scheme (Ndis) Deficit ($7,325) $0 ($7,325) $0
Post Office Deficit ($21,512) ($32,662) $11,150 ($188,284)
NAIDOC Deficit ($8,409) ($5,828) ($2,581) ($35,000)
Hcp/Medicare Payments For Aged Care Surplus $80,878 $58,756 $22,122 $357,565
Meals On Wheels (MOW) Deficit ($7,289) (%1,164) ($6,125) ($7,000)
Aged Care CHSP Surplus $27,415 ($3,998) $31,413 ($16,691)
Aged Care Rent Surplus $1,720 $2,738 ($1,018) $16,430
Subtotal - Untied Funding Programs $40,096 ($18,088) $58,184 ($81,550)
Tied Funding Programs

DFSV Enhancement Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0
IAS RIBS Deficit ($2,068) ($7,455) $5,387 ($43,139)
Dept Of Emergency Services Deficit ($1,552) $0 ($1,552) $0
DETE Childcare Deficit ($26,519) ($692) ($25,827) $0
DETE Vacation Care Surplus $0 ($56) $56 ($0)
Get Ready Queensland Deficit ($100) $300 ($400) $1,780
NIAA Kowanyama Playgroup Deficit ($21,013) ($872) ($20,141) ($1,079)
IAS Sport & Rec Deficit ($2,681) ($377) ($2,304) $299
Deadly Active Sport & Rec Program Deficit ($28,401) ($742) ($27,659) ($552)
Kowanyama Men'S Shed Operating Grant Surplus $9,319 ($1,194) $10,513 ($7,194)
Doha Njcp 279 Deficit ($121,865) ($20,582) ($101,283) ($104,479)
Aged Care Qcss Surplus $18,285 $0 $18,285 $0
Qld Health Public Health Surplus $17,008 ($4,150) $21,158 ($22,000)
Womans Shelter Surplus $56,704 ($1,086) $57,790 $2,512
Indigenous Rangers Deficit ($152,090) ($26,581) ($125,509) ($137,449)
Women's Meeting Place Operating Grant Deficit ($36,760) ($10,881) ($25,879) ($54,880)
Service Enhancement Dsdsatsip Deficit ($11,664) ($1,090) ($10,574) ($5,784)
Community Night Patrol Surplus $11,321 $0 $11,321 $0
Ndia Community Connector Services Surplus $22,000 ($5,171) $27,171 ($27,446)
Community Toolbox Surplus $0 ($2,994) $2,994 ($17,964)
Daff - Indigenous Rangers Coastal Clean Up Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0
Queensland Community Support Scheme (Qcss) Surplus $32,385 $0 $32,385 $0
Local Decision Making Body (Ldmb) Deficit ($12,000) ($9,049) ($2,951) ($52,702)
Sly Grog Go Away Project Surplus $12,831 $0 $12,831 $0
Enhancing Local Government Biosecurity Capacity (ELGBC) Deficit ($1,108) $334 ($1,442) $2,012
Chde Financial Emergency Relief Program Surplus $2,848 ($832) $3,680 ($5,000)
Community Child Care Fund Restricted Program Expansion (CCCFR)  Surplus $222,463 $0 $222,463 ($677,054)
Chde - Disaster Emergency Relief Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0
Nest To Ocean Deficit ($26,890) $0 ($26,890) $0
Subtotal - Tied Funding Programs ($39,550) ($93,170) $53,620 ($1,150,118)
TOTAL Community Services & Cultural Heritage Surplus $546 ($111,258) $111,804 ($1,231,668)

Roads,Infrastructure & Essential Service
Actual YTD Current Budget Va(;l:rr:::tto Full Year

Net Operating Results by Program R Budget | Current Budget
Untied Funding Programs

Council Houses / Buildings Deficit ($802,939) ($936,480) $133,541 ($5,381,287)
Building/ Carpenters Deficit ($120,729) ($152,302) $31,573 ($891,957)

Page 7




Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

Year to Date August 2024

Net Operating Results by Program

S
e =5

Electrician Deficit ($8,828) ($51,406) $42,578 ($299,448)

Essential Services Deficit ($315,761) ($275,621) ($40,140) ($1,634,974)

Parks & Gardens Deficit ($67,458) ($78,224) $10,766 ($458,645)

Roads Surplus $198,762 $184,251 $14,511 ($220,713)

Workshop Deficit ($2,411) $0 ($2,411) $0

Swimming Pool Deficit ($2,663) ($18,850) $16,187 ($113,150)

Heavy Plant Deficit ($67,517) $166,604 ($234,121) $999,600

Road Contractors Camp Deficit ($12,517) ($3,880) ($8,637) ($23,300)

Airport Deficit ($71,788) ($76,718) $4,930 ($452,455)

Batching Plant Surplus $92,640 $47,790 $44.850 $286,708

QBuild Upgrade Program Deficit ($323,365) $108,760 ($432,125) $652,555

QBuild R&M Program Surplus $26,460 $117,490 ($91,030) $704,921

Subtotal - Untied Programs ($1,478,113) ($968,586) ($509,527) ($6,832,144)

Tied Funding Programs

QRA Counter Disaster Operations (CDO) Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0

|TOTAL Road, Infrastructure & Essential Services Deficit ($1,478,113) ($968,586) ($509,527) ($6,832,144)

[TOTAL NET OPERATING RESULT Surplus | $917,613]  $2,841,106] ($1,923,493)  ($7,670,857)|
Capital Surplus $1,659,031 ($2,214,500) $3,873,531 ($2,214,500)
TOTAL NET CAPITAL RESULT Surplus $1,659,031 ($2,214,500) $3,873,531 ($2,214,500)

TOTAL NET RESULT Surplus | $2,576,645| $626,606]  $1,950,039]  ($9,885,357)

Page 8



CAPITAL PROJECTS SCHEDULE as at 31/08/24

PROJECT BUDGET GRANT FUNDING EXPENDITURE
Project Total project Remaining
Project Funding - Project Grants expenditure Budget
Funding - Grant Funding - | Project Total | Grants Received Received Grants balance | Expenditure to | Expenditure | C I ludi ital ilable as at
Project Grant (variations) COF Budget upto 30/6/24 2024/25 not yet received 30/6/24 2024/25 2024/25 to 31/08/2024 31/08/2024 Status
a b c d=(a+b+c) e f g=(a+b-e-f) h i j k=(h+i+j) 1=(d-k)

Dilgp Iccip Water, Waste & Solid 9,500,000 0 9,500,000 7,055,934 0 2,444,066 9,087,231 91,717 147,845 9,326,793 173,207
Remote Housing Program - round 1 2,139,037 0 2,139,037 1,925,134 0 213,904 2,057,779 34,973 48,072 2,140,823 (1,786)
Remote Housing Program - round 2 4,515,679 0 4,515,679 4,064,111 0 451,568 3,182,351 10,670 1,223,622 4,416,643 99,036
Subdivision Stage 1B 3,051,953 0 3,051,953 915,586 0 2,136,367 203,078 310,734 1,914,926 2,428,738 623,216
Women's Meeting Place Stage 1 313,000 0 313,000 313,000 0 0 284,865 0 0 284,865 28,135
W4Q 21-24 Staff House's Stage 2 340,000 0 340,000 306,000 0 34,000 338,740 0 0 338,740 1,260
W4Q 21-24 Kiddies Wading Pool & Pumps Upgrade 229,455 615,000 0 844,455 802,255 0 42,200 631,646 12,359 151,171 795,176 49,279
W4Q 21-24 Women's Meeting Place Stage 2 & 3 670,000 (670,000) 0 0 0 0 0 2,614 0 0 2,614 (2,614)
W4Q 21-24 Workshop Compound Stage 3 390,000 55,000 0 445,000 351,000 0 94,000 444,373 0 0 444,373 627
Cultural Collection / Cyclone Vault 100,000 0 100,000 43,931 0 56,069 36,150 1,176 74,229 JSNNS55) (11,555)
Airport Fuel Farm & Paalc Lighting Upgrades Dsdilgp 1,167,919 129,769 1,297,688 990,000 0 177,919 1,077,137 0 302,393 1,379,530 (81,842)
Gas Storage And Roadway Access 196,650 21,850 218,500 127,640 0 69,010 164,974 0 0 164,974 53,526
Essential Services Facility 650,000 0 650,000 585,000 0 65,000 647,253 20,395 13,695 681,343 (31,343)
SES Vehicle 55,000 0 55,000 0 0 55,000 52,657 0 0 52,657 2,343
CAT Excavator & Shed 500,000 0 500,000 200,000 0 300,000 29,348 436,521 0 465,868 34,132
Workers Camp Feasibility Study 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0 0 40,879 0 0 40,879 9,121
Kowanyama Hub Project 55,000 5,400 60,400 50,000 0 5,000 17,478 27,898 0 45,376 15,024
Rapid Leo Deployment Program 45,000 0 45,000 22,500 22,500 0 12,533 5,920 0 18,453 26,547
Lighting Upgrade at Sports Ground 415,000 0 415,000 207,500 0 207,500 0 0 0 0 415,000
Indigenous Knowledge Centre Establishment 60,000 0 60,000 50,000 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 60,000
Works for Queensland 2024-27 projects TBA 2,560,000 0 2,560,000 0 0 2,560,000 0 0 0 0 2,560,000
Magnificent Creek Bank Fortification Kasc.0036.2122 492,788 0 492,788 147,836 0 344,951 28,639 0 0 28,639 464,149
Magnificent Creek Bank Fortification section 1 KASC.0033.2122 1,243,444 0 1,243,444 373,033 0 870,411 0 0 2,198 2,198 1,241,246
Magnificent Creek Bank Fortification section 2 KASC.0035.2122 779,663 0 779,663 233,899 0 545,764 0 0 600 600 779,063
Flood Mitigation Catchment A Swale Drain KASC.0034.2122 521,778 0 521,778 156,533 0 365,245 10,900 0 0 10,900 510,878
QRA REPA KASC.0032 Town Sts 3,730,478 0 3,730,478 1,119,144 0 2,611,335 97,533 69,042 311,798 478,373 3,252,106
Qra Kasc.0037.2122D.Rec 1,173,352 0 1,173,352 280,175 0 893,177 280,175 0 0 280,175 893,177
Qra Kasc.0038.2122 Town Sts 1,224,676 0 1,224,676 367,403 0 857,273 43,640 357,441 427,421 828,502 396,174
DRFA Flood Risk Management Program KASC.0042.2122 166,750 0 166,750 50,025 0 116,725 23,260 0 165,605 188,865 (22,115)
Qra Repa Rural Kasc.0041.2223 7,565,188 0 7,565,188 6,699,560 2,534 863,094 6,738,414 69,042 111,500 6,918,955 646,233
DRFA REPA KASC.0045.2223 4,233,936 0 4,233,936 1,300,437 0 2,933,499 910,702 69,042 0 979,744 3,254,192
Drfa Repa Kasc.0044.2223 805,435 0 805,435 301,657 0 503,778 0 81,132 773,933 855,064 (49,629)
Drfa Repa Town Sts Kasc.0043.2223 1,607,539 0 1,607,539 618,026 0 989,513 0 165,773 1,558,718 1,724,492 (116,952)
DRFA Emergent Works 2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 248,802 531,724 166,826 947,352 (947,352)
Topsy Road Concrete Causeways 500,000 0 500,000 0 0 500,000 0 0 0 0 500,000
DRFA REPA & Betterment Kowanyama St KASC.0047.2223 1,895,060 0 1,895,060 0 514,976 1,380,084 0 0 0 0 1,895,060
DRFA REPA & Betterment Carrington St KASC.0048.2223 1,522,634 0 1,522,634 0 433,648 1,088,985 0 0 0 0 1,522,634
QRA REPA Topsy Rd KASC.0051.2324 10,650,318 0 10,650,318 0 0 10,650,318 0 0 205,571 205,571 10,444,747
QRA REPA Landing Rd KASC.0052.2324 4,201,730 0 4,201,730 0 0 4,201,730 0 0 201,480 201,480 4,000,250
QRA REPA Pormpuraaw Rd KASC.0053.2324 14,819,718 0 14,819,718 0 0 14,819,718 0 0 194,580 194,580 14,625,138
QRA REPA South Mitchell Rd KASC.0054.2324 2,544,931 0 2,544,931 0 0 2,544,931 0 0 0 0 2,544,931
QRA Accessible Roads KASC.0058.2324 0 0 0 0 0 0 34,521 0 34,521 (34,521)
R2R - LRCIP Phase 3 314,862 1,310 316,172 236,147 0 78,715 316,172 0 0 316,172 0[Final 30% to be received
R2R - LRCIP Phase 4 248,240 0 248,240 148,944 0 99,296 0 0 0 0 248,240
TIDS ATSI 2023/24 363,680 0 363,680 267,500 0 96,180 77,500 67,000 123,000 267,500 96,180
Fuel Tanks Diesel 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100,000
Fleet Renewals FY25 0 500,000 500,000 0 0 0 0 244,805 4,056 248,861 251,139
Asset Management Reserve - Renewals program 0 1,094,237 1,094,237 0 0 0 263,155 0 0 263,155 831,082
Parks & Gardens Mowers 0 0 40,000 40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40,000
HydraVac trailer mounted 0 0 30,000 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,000
CAT Positrack/ Skidsteer Loader/slasher/ 3in1 bucket 0 0 140,000 140,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 140,000
Stores Forklift 0 0 140,000 140,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 140,000
Network Hardware Refresh 0 0 60,000 60,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000
Sharpoint eDRMS 0 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100,000
CCTV Migration 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100,000
HR/Payroll/WH&S Su=ystem Upgrade 0 0 400,000 400,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400,000
Oriners/Sefton - Fuels Storage Shed 0 0 40,000 40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40,000
Oriners/Sefton - Council Depot 0 0 164,500 164,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 164,500

87,609,894 0 3,067,066 90,676,959 30,359,909 973,659 56,276,325 27,349,976 2,641,882 8,123,239 38,115,097 52,561,862

Page 9




Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

Year to Date August 2024

Current Assets 24/25 Current Liabilities
Cash At Bank & Onhand 20,106,516 Trade Creditors - 748,101
Self Insurance Reserve - 526,000 Accrued Expenses - 561,058
Trade & Other Receivables 926,846 Income Received in Advance
Provision For Doubtful Debts - 74,906 Payroll & Other Creditors -
Inventories 2,474,709 Loan Liability - 149,616
GST Receivable 378,172 Provisions - 870,172
Accrued Income / Payments in advance 793,063 Lease Liability - 87,837
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 24,078,400 TOTAL CURRENT LIAB - 2,416,784
Non-Current Liabilities

Non-Current Assets
Finance Leases 6,864,368 Loan Liability - 957,837
Prepaid Pastoral Leases 158,758 Provisions - 2,528,941
Security Deposits 17,500 Lease Liability - 525,893
Property, Plant & Equipment (at written down value) TOTAL NC LIABILITIES - 4,012,671
Buildings 31,046,508
Residential Housing 49,988,497 TOTAL LIABILITIES - 6,429,455
Plant & Equipment 852,696
Motor Vehicles 2,133,864 TOTAL NET ASSETS 215,339,885
Furniture & Fittings 0
Roads, drainage, culverts 68,987,358 Equity
Water 6,897,251
Sewerage 7,885,839 Asset Revaluation Reserve 113,191,789
Other Infrastructure 12,296,693 Retained Earnings 102,148,096
Works in Progress 9,993,866 TOTAL EQUITY 215,339,885
Right of Use Asset 567,744
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 197,690,940 -
TOTAL ASSETS 221,769,340

Trade Debtors & Other Trade Creditors

Ageing Receivables (Payables)

Cash Position Current $ 342,543 | $ 694,202
Total Cash At Bank - All Accounts $ 19,897,745 (30 Days $ 398,566 | $ 31,135
Tied Funds - Quarantined Operating $ 1,220,133 |60 Days $ 22,868 |-$ 1,481
Tied Funds - Quarantined Capital $ 1,873,849 [90+ Days $ 162,868 | $ 24,244
Tied Funds - Self-Insurance Reserve $ 2,500,152 [Total $ 926,846 | $ 748,101
Operating Funds remaining $ 14,303,612
Financial Sustainability Goal - 6 Months Months
Number of months covered - Statements 10.14
Number of months covered - Capital Grants Awaiting 8.97
Estimated Monthly Expenditure
Payroll - Budget $932,324
Materials and Services - Prior Year Actuals $663,086
Total per month $1,695,410

Page 10




Council Meeting Report

4.3.1.c - Human Resources Information Report

Title: HR Monthly Information Report

Author: Manager Human Resources

Meeting Date: 24 September 2024

HR Key items

1. Current Projects

New HR/Payroll system — Responses to the scoping document sent out previously have been reviewed, narrowing
the options to two vendors. Meetings with these vendors will be held to discuss the scope in detail. A follow-up with
the chosen vendor will be scheduled after a key decision-maker returns, and a draft business case and
presentation will be prepared.

2. staffing Update

STAFF NUMBERS

e FUll-time o Part-time s Casual Totdl e=eewATSI Employees
180
160
149
140
133

Wi 120
a1}
2
[=] 100
[=%
£
— B0
o
S
T}
=
=
=
=

&0
) H H u

Jun-24 | Jul-24 | Aug-24 | Sep-24 | Oct-24 | Now-24 | Dec-24 | Jan-25 | Feb-25 | Mar-25 | Apr-25 | May-25 | Jun-25

 Full-time 59 59 56
m Part-time 33 34 30
mm Casual 76 73 65
Total 168 166 151 - - - - -
e T5| Employees 151 149 133

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page1of 2



Council Meeting Report

e Recruitment

RECRUITMENT
= Vacancies = Advertised Active Recruitment Positions = New Appointments
16 15
14
12

(=
[
[
[

Number of Employees
o0

Jun-24  Jul-24  Aug-24  Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24  Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25  Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25

Active Recruitment Positions (at end of August)

Aged Care Manager

Workplace Health and Safety Officer

Executive Manger Roads, Infrastructure and Essential Services
Executive Assistant to CEO, Mayor and Councillors

Post Office Assistant Manager

Current Workers Compensation Claims
e NIL

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 2 of 2



Council Meeting Report

4.3.2.a — Disestablishment Committee

Title: Disestablishment of Oriners Sefton Advisory Committee

Author: A/Monager Governance

Meeting Date: 24 September 2024

Resolution:

Pursuant to section 265 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (Qld), that Council resolve to wind up/ disestablish
the Oriners and Sefton Advisory Committee, effective immediately.

Background:

At the June 2022 Ordinary Meeting, Council resolved to establish the Oriners and Sefton Advisory Committee and
adopt Terms of Reference. The primary aim of the Oriners and Sefton Advisory Committee was to help inform Council
on Native Title Traditional Owner aspirations whilst formal Native Title Claims progressed with respect to the lands.
Committee meetings were held generally quarterly, and its advice used to inform all decision-making by Council with
respect to Oriners and Sefton Stations.

In July 2024, Native Title Claims were formally determined by the Federal Court with respect to Oriners and Sefton
Stations, establishing two (2) new Native Title Prescribed Bodies Corporate. The Native Title Prescribed Bodies
Corporate immediately became the correct legal entities managing native title and cultural heritage interests with
respect to the lands (within determined land boundaries). Accordingly, at the September meeting of the Oriners and
Sefton Advisory Committee, members were advised of the expected winding up of the committee and were thanked
for their contribution over the past 2 years. Any members who were not on the Boards of the new PBC's, were
encouraged to join.

Resolution:

Pursuant to section 265 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (Qld), that Council resolve to wind up/ disestablish
the Oriners and Sefton Advisory Committee, effective immediately.

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Pagelofl



Council Meeting Report

4.4.1 - EMRIES Information Report

Title: EMRIES Information Report
Author: Executive Manager Roads, Infrastructure and Essential Services
Meeting Date: 24 september 2024

Executive Summary

Building Services - The current workload is being shared with the building services administration officer and the
building services carpentry supervisor. We have secured an extra person with exceptional Q-Build experience, starting
late September. We will, with her help, streamline the processes and aim to make the Building Services Team paperless
soon. We are currently looking for a full-time replacement.

Splash Park - The shade sails are now installed, and final works set for completion date of 30 September. Splash parks
table settings are complete and installed at the pool.

Lackon - Project Managers for the QRA and REPA works are starting to have our applications approved.
Recently we have secured the following;

e Topsy Road - $10,650,317.98

e lLanding Road - $4,201,730.40

e Pormpuraaw Road Magnificent Creek to the Mitchel River - $14,459,467.20
¢ South Mitchell Road - $2,544,931.29

Please note that the value of this year's total REPA submission for our regional roads is equal to the total of our previous
5 years of submissions.

HISTORIC REPA VALUES

$70,000,000
$65,000,000
$60,000,000
$50,000,000
$40,000,000

$30,000,000

$20,000,000 $18,480,034

$10,754,884 $10,889,858

$9,815,352
$10,000,000
$4,342,441

FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 FY21-22 FY22-23 FY23-24

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Pagelof 3



Council Meeting Report

Given the quantum of these costs, it will be an unprecedented body of work for KASC to deliver. To plan for the delivery
of these projects we have started meeting Lackon to find solutions for accommodation for extra contractors,
agreement on borrow pits, early investigations and streamlining future applications and many other required
activities. We also met with our primary contact from QRA, Mr. Patrick Dwyer, our Regional Liaison Officer — Operations
and had an incredibly positive dialogue.

We will as a priority engage with as many local contractors and businesses as we can to deliver these works. Truly a
fantastic opportunity for our community.

LIRCI Phase 4 - Local Roads and Community Infrastructure Program Phase 4 — in discussion with Lackon to program
the township street signs, with the Council Logo, and the specification of the road speed bumps, speed and pedestrian
signs. (To be completed May 2025)

Housing Lot 344 -

e Final Certificate completed
¢ Housing handover incomplete pending defects.
¢ Final payment to contractor withheld until Housing handover complete

Housing Lot 306 -

e Final certificate completed
¢ Housing handover completed
¢ Windows boarded and final coat external to be completed when tenants return to Kowanyama

Waste Dump Project - Equipment shed structure complete — concrete floor to be laid early October.

Airport fuel storage project — The electrical contractor is to install final electrical works to ensure compliance of fuel
transfer unit. Scheduled week of 26th August, then we can be issued final certification from the auditor. Staff have
carried out refueling to Hinterlands aircraft

Kowanyama Subdivision — The superintendent Langtree Consulting visited and met with Gulf Civil regarding the
progress of the subdivision and ability to complete prior to the wet.

Essential services

e During recent leave of the ES manager, | would like to recognise that Karl Major stepped up as Acting ES
manager and managed numerous Ergon outages that required constant monitoring and management of
the community's sewer pump stations, without incident.

e The ES manager has planned the layout of the tip to start storing the vehicles.

Roads

e KASC Road Crew are working on the REPA works, including contractors from our Prequalified Wet & Dry Plant
Hire contractors.

e Gulf Civil are continuing our REPA Town Roads Project KASC-DRFA-2022-23, it is a priority we complete this
work this year.

Building services

e Q-Build works are being completed in line with expectations.
¢ Planning and procurement of materials required to last over the wet is underway.

Parks and gardens

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 2 of 3



Council Meeting Report

The Parks and Gardens Crews, including EMRIES met with the CEO where we discussed budgets, activities, and
purchases to assist with projects prior to and including the approaching wet season.

Two projects that we are currently working on are;

e Entry Sign which we are anxiously waiting grant approval for. Originally the application was expected to be
granted on 5% September, however postponed until further notice.
e An uplift to the town mall

Airport
This past month has been uneventful, except for some positive activities.
The roads crew were working “Airside” filling in some ruts in and around the airstrip.

We have recently updated the Kowanyama Aerodrome Manual; a document to be referenced, as a guide for the
management, operation, and maintenance of the aerodrome. This is due to recent changes to CASA’s reporting
format (GRF). Our manual only required minor amendments, and a copy is attached as an appendix. The next review
is due March 2025

Our contract with Jasko was extended for another 3 months, however we are currently investigating a sustainable
long term management model for the airport.

Although all the physical works associated with KASC LGGSP 2022-24 Infra -126 Kowanyama Airport Fuel Farm and
PAALC Lighting Upgrades, are complete, we are awaiting a final visit from NRM to run over the operational procedures.
This is programmed for the last week of September. The grant will then be acquitted and would like to take note that
working with the Local Government Grants and Subsidies Program staff has been a pleasure.

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 3of 3



Council Meeting Report

4.4.2.0 — LATE AGENDA REPORT - Subdivision Variations

Title: LATE AGENDA REPORT - Subdivision Variations

Author: EMRIES

Meeting Date: 24 September 2024

Resolution:

That Council resolves to approve a $245,406.41 (GST Excl) variation to the Stage 1B Contract Price (awarded at the
November 2023 Ordinary Meeting) with Gulf Civil Pty Ltd (ABN 30 636 014 714) and delegates authority to the Chief
Executive Officer to vary and approve contracts and pay invoices as and when due.

Background:

At its November 2023 Ordinary Meeting, Council made the following resolution with respect to stage 1B of the
Kowanyama Subdivision, namely:

RESOLUTION: Stage 1B - Lot 81/98 subdivision Construction Tender — KASC-2023-008

STAGE 1B — That subject to Council first receiving written confirmation of sufficient grant funds from the State of
Queensland to complete, Council then engage Gulf Civil Pty Ltd (ABN 30 636 014 714) to construct stage 1B of
the lot 81/98 Subdivision for a price of up to $2,185,412.25 (G5T Excl) and delegate power to the Chief Executive
Officer to do all things necessary to enter into a contract with the contractor and make progress payments
thereunder.

Moved: Cr. Teddy Bernard

Seconded:  Cr. David Jack

CARRIED
The following grant funds are approved for stage 1B of the Subdivision:

TOTAL (esT Not ELEMENT PRICE (GST Incl)
Applicable)
$3,051,953.47 Gulf Civil $2,403,953.47

Electrical (Ergon $500,000

component)

PM/Superintendent $40,000

Contingency $108,000

Within the Electrical element of the budget, Council has incurred Ergon expenses of $86,007.00 to date. $413,993
remains in the electrical budget.

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 10of 4



Council Meeting Report

Council’'s superintendent has sought quotations from various suppliers for the provision of two (2) works which exceed
Gulf Civil's current scope and price for stage 1B, namely electrical and sewer.

The preferred quotes were received from Gulf Civil and are attached to this report. In summary, they are:

Quotation

Variation 1 - Electrical
$222,933.41 ex GST

Quotation

Variation 2 - Sewer
$22,473.00 ex GST

Total Variation $245,406.41 (GST Excl)

The quotes fall within relevant budget allocations and should be approved expediently as variations to the existing
stage 1B Gulf Civil contract.

As the November 2023 resolution of Councilincludes a set contract sum, and the variation exceeds the Chief Executive
Officer’s financial delegation of $199,999 (GST Excl), further Councilresolution is necessary. Practical completion date
for stage 1B is scheduled for 31 October 2024. Stage 1A has already reached practical completion in September 2024.

Resolution:

That Council resolves to approve a $245,406.41 (GST Excl) variation to the Stage 1B Contract Price (awarded at the
November 2023 Ordinary Meeting) with Gulf Civil Pty Ltd (ABN 30 636 014 714) and delegates authority to the Chief
Executive Officer to vary and approve contracts and pay invoices as and when due.

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 2 of 4



Council Meeting Report

Attachment 1: Variation 1Pricing

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 3 of 4



T m/E Unit 13 @ 14, 12 Discovery
[’ V” Drive, North Lakes, 4509

CIVIL ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION QLD

07 4068 3993
www.gulfcivil.com.au

Ref: Specification No 3740 - 20240802

16 September 2024

James Maloney | Superintendent Representative / A1 Services
Contracting on behalf of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

M: 0433 888 479

E: jmaloney@alservices.com.au

Dear James,

Name of Project: Kowanyama Subdivision Stage 1B
Contract Number: TKASC2023-008

VAROO2 - Electrical Works Rev2

Further to your request to review our provided pricing for supply and installation of electrical materials
detailed in plans 3740-E01-1, 3740-E01-2, and 3740-E01-3 and including the associated civil works.

Please be advised the revised pricing for this variation is

Civil Works $128,404.61
Electrical Works $94,528.80
Total $222,933.41 ex GST

Gulf Civil looks forward to working with TSIRC on this project, and should you require any additional
information please do not hesitate to contact me on 0412 201 943.

Regards,

QU

Greg Vaughan

Project Manager

E: Greg.Vaughan@gulfcivil.com.au
M: 0412 201 943

ATLAS EIERS] [Eirces

GULF CIVIL PTY LTD - ABN: 30 636 014 714



http://www.gulfcivil.com.au/
https://lsems.gravityzone.bitdefender.com/scan/aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cudHNpcmMucWxkLmdvdi5hdQ==/5DA6C62593B2D27C80A93E35AC146A54C4DBF33E1DCC27E3F4C7EEE04FF7158D?c=1&i=1&docs=1
mailto:jmaloney@a1services.com.au

Council Meeting Report

Attachment 1: Variation 2 Pricing

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 4 of 4



CIVIL ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION

["vi’ Unit 13 @ 14, 12 Discovery
Drive, North Lakes, 4509

QLD

07 4068 3993

www.gulfcivil.com.au

Ref: TKASC2023-008 Kowanyama Subdivision Stage 1A and 1B

16 September 2024

James Maloney | Superintendent Representative / A1 Services
Contracting on behalf of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

M: 0433 888 479

E: jmaloney@a1lservices.com.au

Dear James,

Name of Project: Kowanyama Subdivision Stage 1B
Contract Number: TKASC2023-008

VARO0O3 - Rising Sewer Main Connection Rev1

Further to RFI001 Pay Item for Rising Sewer Main Connection, please be advised the revised pricing for
this variation is

Total $22,473.00 ex GST

Gulf Civil looks forward to working with TSIRC on this project, and should you require any additional
information please do not hesitate to contact me on 0412 201 943.

Regards,

Jurf—

Greg Vaughan

Project Manager

E: Greg.Vaughan@gulfcivil.com.au
M: 0412 201 943

ATLAS BIEES] [SIFeS

GULF CIVIL PTY LTD - ABN: 30 636 014 714



http://www.gulfcivil.com.au/
https://lsems.gravityzone.bitdefender.com/scan/aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cudHNpcmMucWxkLmdvdi5hdQ==/5DA6C62593B2D27C80A93E35AC146A54C4DBF33E1DCC27E3F4C7EEE04FF7158D?c=1&i=1&docs=1
mailto:jmaloney@a1services.com.au

Council Meeting Report - Community Services and Cultural Heritage

4.5.1 - Community Services and Cultural Heritage Report

Title: Community Services and Cultural Heritage Monthly Update
Author: Acting Executive Manager Community Services and Cultural Heritage
Meeting Date: 24 September 2024
1. Rangers
Total Hrs by Ranger Total Hrs by Theme

50

Total Hours

Ranger

Biodiver. skills, Carbon Program Culture & Vi
resesrch  traiming,  project  manage . =ducation W
& support OHS

Total Hours Theme

e Participation in a turtle camp, with the objective to monitor sand temperatures in marine turtle
nests to determine the impact of climate change on hatchling sex ratio, and to increase the
capacity of the rangers to implement predator control and nest protection programs.

2. Animal Management

e The vet and vet nurse were in community from 27-29 August. During this time, they:
o Desexed 14 dogs
o Treated multiple dogs for wounds/infections
o Removed a hose from a horse. The hose was tied around its neck in a self-tightening
knot

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Pagelof 4



Council Meeting Report - Community Services and Cultural Heritage

3. Aged Care

50

45 40

35
35

30

25 20 21
20 16

15

10

Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23

= Home Care Package Clients

45

Jan-24

43

42

42

47

42 43 43

Feb-24

Mar-24

26

24

24 24 23 23

Apr-24

May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24

s C ommon Home Support Program Clients

Common Home Support Program Units

450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100

50

Domestic
Assistance

I Aug-24 e Monthly Contracted Units

4, Services Australia

199
200 195

159
150

138

100

50

Sept Oct

138 138
72
3 3
45
3
8
1 1
4 4 35 12
Jan Feb Mar Apr

B MyGov

Social Support - Personal Care Social Support -
Individual

Group

Meals

Service Type

HCentrelink MMedicare

W Child Support

Flexible Respite

—H

Transport

Home
Maintenance

97
85

81 79
7 8
1
11 23 51 22
May Jun

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

Page 2 of 4



Council Meeting Report - Community Services and Cultural Heritage

Client Duration Time
300

250 —_'_/\

200

150

100

50

Sept Oct Nowv Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

— 5mins - 30 mins  es—30mins - 60mins

5. Women's Shelter

e Attendance statistics for the last 12 months:

30 78
25
22
20
15 14
12
11
10
7 7 8
6
5 4
I 2 2
0 | |
Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24

6. Women's Services

e The group supported several bookings at the hall, including the Girls Night events, the Human
Rights Commission, and the Kowanyama Health Expo.

¢ Women'’s group held their monthly wellbeing session which included an on-country excursion
turtle hunting and damper making whilst yarning about relationships and emotions.

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Page 3of 4



Council Meeting Report - Community Services and Cultural Heritage

7. Post Office

The month of July saw 1,743 customers access services (excluding the ATM), down 5% from last

month.
Parcel Collection and Foot Traffic
Service Quantity

8_”_1

m Banking m Bill Payment = Other

~._16
® Parcel Collection  ® Lodging Mail ® OTC Point of Sale

* These statistics do not include:
o Parcels and letters that don’t get scanned
o Power card transactions

o Banking paperwork customers, e.g. those with issues accessing their account, identification documents, etc.

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council

Page 4 of 4



	0 Meeting Agenda - September 2024
	1. Welcome
	2. Apologies / Conflict of Interest
	3. a.  Minutes from the Previous Meeting (August OM 2024)
	b. Action Items
	4. Reports
	4.1. Councillor Portfolio Updates
	4.2. Chief Executive Officer
	4.2.1. Information Report: Monthly Update (Verbal update)
	4.2.2. Information Report: Ranger Program Strategic Plan

	4.3. Executive Manager Corporate and Financial Services
	4.3.1. Information Report: Monthly Update
	a. Governance
	b. Finance Report
	c. Hr Report

	4.3.2. Agenda Reports
	a. Disestablishment of Committee


	4.4. Executive Manager Roads, Infrastructure and Essential Services
	4.4.1. Information Report: Monthly Update
	4.4.2. Agenda Reports - NIL

	4.5. Executive Manager Community Services
	4.5.1. Information Report: Monthly Update – (LATE REPORT)
	4.5.2. Agenda Reports
	a. Subdivision Variation (LATE REPORT)



	5. Other Business
	6. Closed Business

	4.2.2 - Info Report - Rangers Program
	4.2.2 –Information Report
	Attachment: Briefing Note - KASC Land & Sea Rangers Strategic Plan

	4.2.2.a Strategic Summary
	Background
	Strategic scenarios
	Business as Usual
	Benefits:
	Drawbacks:

	Step away
	Benefits:
	Drawbacks:

	Spin-off Enterprise
	Benefits:
	Drawbacks:

	Recommendation
	Governance approach


	4.2.2 - Info Report - Rangers Program
	Attachment: Indigenous Land and Sea Rangers Program: Strategic Plan 2024-2028

	4.2.2.a Kowanyama-Rangers-StratPlan-2024_2028
	Indigenous Land and Sea Ranger Program: Strategic Plan 2024—2028
	Dedications and acknowledgements

	Vision Statement
	Our goals
	Our principles

	Our story
	History of the Rangers and the Lands Office
	NIAA contract
	Focus of the Strategic Plan
	Focus areas
	Pathway toward independence

	Indigenous Rangers Program outcomes
	Governance

	Our priority areas
	Priority Area 1: Environmental
	Context

	Priority Area 2: Cultural
	Context

	Priority Area 3: Workforce Development
	Context

	Priority Area 4: Economic Development
	Context


	Summary: Environmental strategy
	Summary: Cultural strategy
	Summary: Workforce Development strategy
	Summary: Economic Development strategy
	Partnerships and stakeholders
	Country and community
	Country
	Our elders
	The community
	Our neighbours

	Institutions and agencies
	Abm Elgoring Ambung (PBC)
	Fisheries
	Biosecurity Queensland
	Queensland Parks
	Education Queensland
	Museums Queensland
	SES and Queensland Fire
	Regional NRM & Landcare
	NAILSMA
	ICIN

	Local Government
	LGAQ
	TCICA
	Shires

	Clients and programs
	TopWatch
	GhostNets
	WCTTAA

	Partnerships: selected summary

	Monitoring and Evaluation
	Operational context
	Monitoring and Evaluation Annual Score Cards

	Bibliography
	Appendix

	4.3.1.a - Governance Monthly Update
	4.3.1.a - Governance Update
	Key Items


	4.3.1.b Finance Monthly Update
	4.3.1.b - Finance Update
	Attachment 1:

	4.3.1.b.i Attachment 1 Finance Report August 2024
	4.3.1.c - HR Monthly Update
	4.3.1.c - Human Resources Information Report
	HR Key items


	4.3.2.a Disestablishment of Committee1
	4.3.2.a – Disestablishment Committee

	4.5.1. CSCH Monthly Report
	4.5.1 – Community Services and Cultural Heritage Report
	1. Rangers
	2. Animal Management
	3. Aged Care
	4. Services Australia
	5. Women’s Shelter
	6. Women’s Services
	7. Post Office
	* These statistics do not include:
	o Parcels and letters that don’t get scanned

	4.4.2.a LATE REPORT Subdivision 1B Variation.pdf
	4.4.2.a LATE REPORT.pdf
	4.4.2.a.i KASC_VAR002_Rev2 Electrical Variation.pdf
	Name of Project:  Kowanyama Subdivision Stage 1B
	Contract Number:  TKASC2023-008
	VAR002 – Electrical Works Rev2
	Regards,
	Greg Vaughan
	Project Manager
	E: Greg.Vaughan@gulfcivil.com.au
	M: 0412 201 943

	4.4.2.a.ii KASC_VAR003_Rev1 Rising Sewer Main Connection.pdf
	Name of Project:  Kowanyama Subdivision Stage 1B
	Contract Number:  TKASC2023-008
	VAR003 – Rising Sewer Main Connection Rev1
	Regards,
	Greg Vaughan
	Project Manager
	E: Greg.Vaughan@gulfcivil.com.au
	M: 0412 201 943





